
1 
 

WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

WORCESTER TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY HALL 
WORCESTER, PA 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 20, AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER by Arthur Bustard at 7:30 pm 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ATTENDANCE 
PRESENT:  
ARTHUR C. BUSTARD  [X] 
SUSAN G. CAUGHLAN  [X]  
STEPHEN C. QUIGLEY  [X] 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
None 
 
MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS 
A motion was made by Supervisor Caughlan, seconded by Supervisor Quigley, and approved by all to 
dispense with the reading of and approve as amended the minutes of April 15, 2015.   
 
James Mollick, Worcester, commented on the mention of Stony Creek Farms regarding the topsoil 
issue. 
 
Chairman Bustard is not aware of the topsoil being removed. 

 
Treasurer’s Report 
A motion was made by Supervisor Caughlan, seconded by Supervisor Quigley, and approved by all to 
accept April 2015 Treasurer’s Report. 
 
Payment of the Bills of the Township 
A motion was made by Supervisor Caughlan, seconded by Supervisor Quigley, and approved by all to 
make a payment of the bills in the amount of $371,980.47. 
 
Dr. Mollick commented on the Wisler Pearlstine bills and inquired as to what portion of the bill was 
charged toward the Right to Know process.  He suggested that all bills being charged for Right to 
Know should not be paid. 
 
Waiver Request for 2670 Shady Lane 
Joseph Nolan, Township Engineer, explained that there is a request for a waiver of the location of the 
sand mound at 2670 Shady Lane.   The Subdivision and Land Development code requires that a septic 
system be located 30 feet from the side and rear property lines, unless the Board grants a waiver.  The 
proposed plan would locate the system 22 feet from the side property lines. 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Caughlan, seconded by Supervisor Quigley, and approved by all to 
grant the waiver for a portion of the septic bed area to be closer than 30 feet of the property line, 
conditioned on the neighbor being notified and worked into a discussion concerning stormwater 



2 
 

drainage, and also conditioned on the Township offering the homeowner technical assistance with 
correcting any stormwater problems that now exist or that may be created by this proximity to the 
property line. 
 
Supervisor Quigley inquired if the neighbors could be adversely affected if this system were permitted.  
Mr.  Nolan clarified that water will flow downhill, and a final grading inspection would be required as 
a result of the grading permit.  The Township has the ability through the grading permit to make the 
applicant correct adverse issues.   
 
Supervisor Caughlan inquired about additional testing areas.  Mr. Nolan was not provided additional 
information.  The property owner is not allowed to put the septic system in the same area as the 
existing system. 
 
Steve Rock, Worcester, addressed a property owner’s issue of a septic installation and that front 
mounds can have a major impact on neighboring property owners.   
 
Mr. Nolan and Supervisor Quigley clarified that the property Mr. Rock is referencing was installed 
before the grading permit process existed. 
 
Robert Andorn, Worcester, stated for the record that the septic system is 22 feet from the property line, 
not 12. 
 
Preserve at Worcester, Toll Bros. 
Mr. Nolan explained and addressed the top soil removal issue at the Preserve at Worcester, and that the 
Worcester Township Planning Commission was not in support of the berms proposed.  There was 
discussion of the Township taking some of the top soil and allowing some soil to leave the site. 
 
There are currently 26,000 cubic yards of top soil on the site.  Toll Bros. is looking to get rid of 7,700 
cubic yards of top soil. 
 
Tom Imperato, Toll Bros., further clarified the amount of topsoil, which is approximately 20 feet high 
and covers four building lots.  The current issue is that the topsoil is on building lots that need to be 
built out. 
 
Supervisor Caughlan inquired as to why the top soil must be moved.  Mr. Imperato explained that 
certain limitations apply under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System process.  This 
would include how much earth movement may occur.    
 
Chairman Bustard inquired as to why the berm shouldn't exist.   He asked Gordon Todd, Worcester 
Township Planning Commission Chairman, who was in the audience.  Mr. Todd stated that the berm 
changes the character, and he isn’t in favor of berms in front of projects.   
 
Supervisor Quigley inquired about having some of the soil donated to Stony Creek Farms. 
 
Supervisor Caughlan asked if this would be allowed.  Mr. Nolan responded that this must be 
coordinated with the Developer at Stony Creek Farms.  Mr. Nolan would be willing to notify Realty, 
and see if this is a possibility.   
 
The Board agreed to table this matter for the Solicitor, Engineer, and Developer to work together to 
contact Stony Creek Farms.  This will be discussed further at the work session meeting. 



3 
 

A Stony Creek Farms resident (did not provide name) wanted to know if there is an opportunity to 
comment on the topsoil arrangement at the Work Session. 
 
Dr. Mollick commented on the Township taking soil, and if it is paid for.  Mr. Nolan explained that it 
was donated in the past.  Dr. Mollick recommended that the Township take the soil and donate the soil 
to Stony Creek Farms. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
Zoning Hearing Board Update 
Tiffany Loomis, Director of Planning and Zoning, gave the report. 
May 26, 2015 Zoning Hearing Board is cancelled due to no new applications. 
 
Subdivision and Land Development Report 
Ms. Loomis gave the report. 
Willow Creek Orchards has a three-lot subdivision under review.  Supervisor Caughlan clarified that 
this is not a subdivision for homes, this is a 150+ acreage of land being divided into three separate 
farms at approximately 50 acres each under the conservation easement.  
 
Equestrian Usage of the Trails 
There was a Power Point Presentation on the equestrian usage of trails throughout the Township given 
by F. Lee Mangan, Township Manager.  The presentation will be posted on the Township website 
(www.worcestertwp.com) or may be viewed at the Township Building. 
 
Recommendations were made pursuant to safety concerns and design of the trails to incorporate 
equestrian activity.  Facts and images were provided to support the recommendations provided. 
 
There was discussion on cleaning up horse waste, inviting the equestrians in the community to work 
with the Township moving forward, athletic group involvement on the trails outnumbering equestrians, 
and turning the path behind Heyser Field into an equestrian usage trail. 
 
MANAGER RESIGNATION 
Mr. Mangan gave his resignation due to turning 65.  He is looking forward to traveling and living his 
life.  He thanked the residents and the open arms he has received by the community.  He thanked the 
Board of Supervisors, Mr. Nolan, and Mr. Garrity for the unprecedented efforts, in addition to the staff.  
He thanked Eunice C. Kriebel and her 22 years of service to the Township, and how she is the heart 
and soul of this community.  He additionally thanked Ms. Loomis, Bob D’Hulster, Director of Public 
Works, and additional staff.  He quoted Thomas Jefferson when he went to Monticello.  
 
Chairman Bustard thanked him for his services. 
 
ENGINEER’S REPORT 
Hickory Hill Sewer Update and Bid Results  
Mr. Nolan introduced the bid pricing for the Hickory Hill Sewer Project, which included a total of five 
bids submitted. The Township's budgeted amount is $877,565.00, and the bid was received for 
$860,434.62.  This amount includes the public construction of the project, and not the work that needs 
to be done on individual properties. 
 
The total project cost came in under bid.  The bids were opened on May 13, 2015 and there is a 60-day 
period to award the bid, which is July 12, 2015.  Mr. Mangan presented the financing options 
previously, and this will be addressed at the June work session meeting. 

http://www.worcestertwp.com/


4 
 

 
Adair Drive Stormwater Update 
A total of seven easements are needed. Two easements have been received, two are in discussion, one 
definite no, and two are not responding.   
 
Artmar Rd/ Ethel Road Study 
The study is completed and $70,000 is needed to correct the stormwater issues in this area.  An 
easement would be needed.  Mr. Nolan has requested direction to move forward with this project.  
$52,000 was budgeted for this project, which is approximately $20,000 less.  Mr. Nolan stated that is a 
major issue that needs to be addressed.  Questions and answers ensued regarding the project. 
 
Supervisor Caughlan addressed Nancy Thompson's (Worcester Resident) property.  The pipe needed to 
be extended farther than originally intended, and two additional inlets will be added. 
 
Chairman Bustard inquired if this will be in conjunction with the MS4.  Mr. Nolan stated that MS4 is 
not an issue. 
 
Shefley Lane Sewer Update 
The Shefley Lane sewer study has been completed.  Chairman Bustard directed that this should be put 
on the June Work Session Agenda. 
 
2015 Road Improvement Program 
Mr. Nolan presented the PowerPoint Presentation on this matter.  Mr. D’Hulster designated the roads 
to be repaired with Mr. Nolan. 
 
The presentation will be included on the Township website, and available for review at the Township 
Building.  The total estimated cost totals $1,042,000.00. 
 
Chairman Bustard asked Mr. Mangan to discuss this project.  Ms. Kriebel and Mr. Mangan have 
looked over this cost estimate reported and that the funds are available in the reserve.  Ms. Kriebel and 
Mr. Mangan recommended that the project move forward. 
 
Chairman Bustard inquired how to evaluate the roads going forward, especially due to the increasingly 
rough winters. 
 
Mr. Nolan addressed what roads need to be fixed and why.  He also explained what kind of repairs 
exist.  He addressed that many of the high ticket roads are being fixed.  He also explained how 
potholes come into existence.  Reconstruction repairs need to be done, or the potholes will become 
much worse. 
 
Supervisor Quigley addressed this issue and would like to move forward with this project. 
 
Supervisor Caughlan addressed the audit from last year, and asked if the 2014 audit will be completed 
by next month’s meeting in order to discuss any extra revenue from 2014 for the 2015 Road 
Improvement Project. 
 
Chairman Bustard would like to move forward quickly.  Mr. Nolan suggested a few different options 
in terms of bidding.   
 
Each road will be an add-on per Mr. Garrity's suggestion when the project is bid. 



5 
 

Mr. Nolan will prepare the bids and proceed.  Supervisor Caughlan inquired whether this information 
was released to the public.  This will be posted on the website, however, needs to be identified that it is 
preliminary.   
 
SOLICITOR’S REPORT 
Conditional Use: Center Square Decision and Order 
Mr. Garrity addressed this matter.  There were a total of six hearings that were approximately three 
hours each held between 2014 and 2015.   
 
The Decision and Order will be posted on the website and mailed to all parties. 
 
Supervisor Quigley inquired if this becomes a lengthy legal battle how will the Solicitor’s time will be 
utilized.   He inquired as to what type of accessibility to the Township Solicitor the parties will have, 
and how the fees will be calculated. 
 
Mr. Garrity explained that it is entirely up to the individual parties and their attorneys as to the extent 
of their involvement. 
 
A motion was made by Chairman Bustard, seconded by Supervisor Caughlan, and approved by all to 
deny the Conditional Use Application for Center Square Golf Course submitted by The Cutler Group 
due to not meeting the criteria of a residential life care facility, as will be set forth in more detail in the 
written decision and order of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
Chairman Bustard took a five minute break.  Mr. Garrity clarified that comments do not need to be 
taken due to the public hearing.  Dr. Mollick was in objection.  Chairman Bustard called the room to 
order. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
A motion was made by Chairman Bustard, seconded by Supervisor Caughlan, and approved by all to 
accept the resignation of Mr. Mangan. 
 
Mr. Rock thanked Lee for his service. 
 
Dr. Hayes thanked Lee for his service. 
 
Chairman Bustard stated that there was an executive session regarding this matter a few weeks back.   
David Woglom is doing the search with the Meyner Center associated with Lafayette College for $75 
an hour at a maximum of $6,000 for the contract. 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Caughlan, seconded by Supervisor Quigley, and approved by all to 
engage Mr. Woglom to conduct the managerial search at a rate of $75 an hour for a maximum of 
$6,000. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Dan Dreher, Worcester, commented on the expansion of the Hickory Hill system, and different 
information he received at two separate Board of Supervisor’s meetings.  In his opinion, latest 
newsletter did not fully explain why the sewer rate increased.   
 
Sue Helveston, Worcester, commented on Stony Creek Farms regarding the dump.  She stated that the 
Developer cleaned up numerous items in the dump and would like the dump to be cleaned up before 



6 
 

the site is dedicated.  She inquired as to when the dump will be cleaned out, a neighbor’s driveway 
located at 107 Mustang Way has a sink hole. 
 
Mr. Nolan clarified that the driveway sinkhole is on the punch list. 
 
Mr. Rock commented on the Hickory Hill packet distribution, and that an affected resident did not 
receive a packet.   
 
Elaine Annelli, Worcester, commented on the landscaping issues of Stony Creek Farms and is 
displeased with the results.  She commented on the many trees, and the overall care of the trees.  She is 
also concerned about Phase IV and whether Ryan Homes will leave without the proper landscaping 
being installed, and asked the Township for assistance.  Chairman Bustard and Supervisor Quigley 
addressed her concerns. 
 
John Diesel, Worcester, commented on the sewer ordinance and its enforcement regarding the Hickory 
Hill Sewer Project, and also one's personal responsibility of the maintenance of an on-site sewer 
system.  He additionally commented on speed limit on various roadways, managerial candidate 
resumes being posted on the web, and the highway improvement program. 
 
Supervisor Quigley further clarified on the inspection process of DEP for the on-site sewer systems 
that will be required and mandated.   
 
Supervisor Caughlan addressed that co-funding has been looked into the for the Army Base.   
 
James Phelan, Worcester, thanked the Board regarding their Decision regarding the Center Square 
Golf Course Conditional Use. 
 
William Goulding, Worcester, addressed drainage, landscaping, rocky conditions, and the overall 
landscaping conditions at Stony Creek Farms.  He addressed the spirit of the Township and their 
involvement.  He thanked Mr. Nolan's efforts.  He further commented on the communications with the 
Developer and the overall inter-action of the Developer with the Stony Creek Farm Residents. 
 
Mary Joe McGuire, Worcester, has requested that the dirt from the Preserve at Worcester be donated to 
Stony Creek Farms. 
 
Mr. Andorn commented on the Stony Creek Farms matter regarding topsoil matter and how the topsoil 
is distributed and suggestions regarding the topsoil pursuant to the Army Base site.  Supervisor 
Quigley commented on this matter.   
 
Dr. Mollick commented on his previous objection of the Sunshine Law regarding the Center Square 
Golf Course Decision and Order, common pleas court proceedings, and fines.  He further inquired 
about the North Penn Army Base site and the general nature of the transaction, environmental 
summary, and the cleanliness of the site. 
 
Wayne Talmadge, Worcester, owns an end unit in Stony Creek Farms commented on the landscaping 
issues present at Stony Creek Farms, stones located in the driveways, as well as the overall 
management of the site.  It was a very litigious process to purchase his home.  He has an astronomical 
water bill and reiterated his overall concerns and how will the Township get more involved.  He 
inquired as to the property owners as to their recourse. 
 



7 
 

Merle Foglia, Worcester, commented on the amount of watering she has to do to maintain her lawn.  
She further commented on the maintenance of her lawn and is tired of the dead trees.   
 
Mary Kay Tucker, Worcester, is in support of what the residents have said.  She thanked Mr. Nolan.  
She commented on the overall landscaping, the trails, the reason she bought at Stony Creek Farms, and 
the dead trees. 
 
Dr. Hayes commented on the Army Reserve Base and the overall study and its conclusions regarding 
ambient contamination across the board in soil, as well as the park development that may occur.  She 
inquired what will be done with the silos and the building.   
 
Paul Allegretti, Worcester, commented on the gutters emptying out on the driveway and the dangerous 
conditions in the winter with icy conditions.  His neighbor was severely injured due to icy conditions.  
He further clarified these points.  He inquired about the street paving.  Final dedication has not yet 
occurred.     
 
Supervisor Caughlan inquired as to what can be done with the issues of the downspouts.  Mr. Nolan 
clarified that most of these issues are between the Ryan Homes and the home buyer, and are 
considered a private matter.  
 
Mr. Nolan addressed that much of what was discussed tonight is being addressed on punch lists.  If 
trees are planted now they will die in the summer time.   
 
Mr. DeLello commented on the process of Sunny Brook Estates and their landscaping process and how 
these plantings occurred throughout the development, commented on HOA processes, and private 
matters that the property owner is responsible for.  Their neighborhood is extremely is lush and has 
very nice landscaping.   
 
Adjournment 
There being no further business brought before this Board, Chairman Bustard adjourned the regularly 
scheduled meeting at 10:11 p.m. 
 
 

 
   Respectfully submitted: 

   
      
      Eunice C. Kriebel, Assistant Secretary 

 
 
 
 


